
TOWN OF VERNON 
Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) 

Meeting Notice 
Thursday, August 19, 2021 7:30 PM  

Town Hall 
14 Park Place, 3rd Floor 

Council Chambers* 
Vernon, CT 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call by Roland Klee, Chairman 
  
2. Administrative Actions/Requests  
 

2.1 Amendment/Adoption of Agenda - Additional business to be considered under 
agenda item #7 “Other Business” requires Commission vote 

 
2.3 Approval of the Minutes from the July 15, 2021.  
 

3. New Application(s) for receipt, if any:  
 
4. Public Hearing(s) and Action on Applications 
 
5. 8-24 Referrals, If any 
  
6. Other Business/Discussion 
  
 6.1 Municipal Zoning Regulations for Cannabis Establishments  
 
7. Adjournment   
      
        Roland Klee, Chairman 
        Planning & Zoning Commission 
          
 
 
 
 
*Note: This meeting is scheduled to be an in-person, public meeting; no virtual or hybrid participation option is available.  



DRAFT MINUTES 



TOWN OF VERNON 
Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) 

Thursday, July 15, 2021 7:30 PM 
 

VIA ZOOM  
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call by Susan Reudgen, Vice-Chairperson at 7:30 PM 

• Regular members present: Robin Lockwood, Joseph Miller, Mike Mitchell, Susan Reudgen and Jesse 
Schoolnik 
• Alternate Member: Carl Bard, sitting for Roland Klee 
• Absent Members: - Roland Klee and Iris Mullan 
• Staff present: George McGregor, Town Planner, Shaun Gately, EDC/Asst. Planner 
• Recording secretary: Jill Rocco 

 
  
2. Administrative Actions/Requests  
 

2.1 Amendment/Adoption of Agenda - Additional business to be considered under agenda item #7 
“Other Business” requires Commission vote 

 
Robin Lockwood MOVED to ADOPT the agenda as is. Joseph Miller seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
2.3 Approval of the Minutes from the June 17, 2021.  
 
Robin Lockwood MOVED to APPROVE the minutes from June 17, 2021. Mike Mitchell seconded and the 
motion carried with Susan Reudgen abstaining. 
 

3. New Application(s) for receipt, if any: 
 
 None 
 
4. Public Hearing(s) and Action on Applications 
  

None  
 
5. 8-24 Referrals, If any 
 
 None 
 
6.  Other Business/Discussion 
 

6.1 2021 CT Legislative Session Land Use related initiatives. 
 
• Town Planner George McGregor provided a copy of the 2021 Guide to Legislation Impacting Development and 

Land Use Procedures (found online with the agenda). 
• Town Planner George McGregor gave a briefing on 2021 Legislation that was passed. 
• Discussion ensued. 
• Jesse Schoolnik excused himself from the meeting at 8:14 PM. 
• Discussion continued. 



 
 
  
7. Adjournment  
 
 Carl Bard MOVED to ADJOURN at 8:29 PM. Joseph Miller seconded and the motion carried unanimously.  
      
         
 
  
 
Jill Rocco 
Recording Secretary        



Other Business 



 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE 

TOWN PLANNER 
GEORGE K. MCGREGOR, AICP 

 

14 PARK PLACE, VERNON, CT 06066-3291 
Tel:  (860) 870-3640  

E-mail:  gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 
 
 

TOWN OF VERNON 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Town of Vernon Planning & Zoning Commission  
    
FROM: George K. McGregor, AICP 
 
SUBJECT: Municipal zoning regulations related to retail Cannabis establishments: Options 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2021 
 
 
Pursuant to SB 1201, the legislation legalizing (de-criminalizing) the use of certain Cannabis 
products, municipalities are authorized to enact zoning regulations or ordinances related to 
cannabis establishments. This memo will focus on summarizing the options for the Planning and 
Zoning Commission (PZC). This land use is evolving and will continue to change; a flexible 
approach is necessary. We are learning new things about the industry on a daily basis. 
 
Technically, the legislation creates licensing for a number of cannabis related activities (note that 
licensing for Producer and Dispensary already exist in CT).  
 

Cultivator; micro-cultivator; retailer; hybrid retailer; product manufacturer; food and 
beverage manufacturer; product packager; delivery service; transporter. 

 
Although retail locations appear to be the focus of land use discussions in many jurisdictions, 
any amended ordinance may need to address all available licenses. 
 
If the PZC takes no action to amend the Zoning Regulations, cannabis establishments shall be 
regulated as similar retail uses would be under today’s ordinance, which, according to State 
officials, for retail might mean similar to how we address alcohol sellers and servers. Micro-
cultivators would be treated as industrial uses, etc… 
 
The municipality may amend the Zoning Regulations to address the sale (or other licensing) of 
cannabis by: 
 

• Prohibiting the use outright in the Town 
• Allowing the use in certain select zoning districts 
• Establishing a review process (Special Permit, for instance) 



 
 

2 
 

• Introducing separation requirements (x feet from a school, for instance) much like 
alcohol establishments  

• Dictating hours, signage, site design, security, or other elements 
 
The PZC may choose, subject to legal guidance, to enact a moratorium on any approvals, for a 
period of time, in order to collect information, perform research, and consider relevant data, prior 
to the amendment process. It is understood that retail establishments will not be allowed until the 
spring of 2022 and at a local rate of no more than one retail establishment for every 25,000 
residents (for Vernon we understand that to mean a maximum of 2 retail and 2 micro-cultivator 
locations/licenses). There are no caps for the other listed establishments. 
Let’s start with working definitions: 
 

• Cannabis Establishment: a producer, dispensary, manufacturer, retailer, packager, or 
delivery service for cannabis products 

• Cultivator: a large grower with an establishment greater than 15,000 square feet of grow 
space 

• Micro-Cultivator: a small grower with grow space between 2,000 and 10,000 square 
feet 

• Retailer: a seller of cannabis to all categories of consumers 
• Hybrid Retailer: a seller of both medical marijuana and retail cannabis 
• Food and Beverage Manufacturer: Utilization of cannabis to produce food and 

beverages (edibles, for instance) 
• Delivery Service: delivery of cannabis products 

 
Land Use Characteristics of Cannabis Establishments 
 
Land Use impacts and characteristics should be viewed similarly to any use proposed in the 
Town of Vernon. For most Planning & Zoning Commission applications those characteristics 
include (but are not limited to) such elements as traffic, architectural design, noise, odor, 
signage, public safety, economic development, and health. As always, it is the weighing and 
balancing of those characteristics which plays a critical role in decision making. 
 
This memorandum acknowledges the potential public health indicators associated with cannabis 
legalization. However, the zoning ordinance is a regulatory tool for land use decision-making. 
Therefore, this paper focuses on land use. 
 
For Retail Cannabis, this use appears to function quite similarly to other retail establishments 
such as convenience stores, liquor stores, drug stores, and other consumer driven outlets: 
Customers arrive, park, purchase, depart. Some states have reported traffic issues (center on 
demand) in the first month or so of retail operations, eventually dissipating over time to more 
normal intensity. 
 



 
 

3 
 

For cultivators and micro-cultivators (indoor), the use appears characteristic of manufacturing 
and processing operations. There does not appear to be extra-ordinary land use effects of these 
establishments. There are anecdotal reports about odor, especially related to processing 
operations. Some jurisdictions are conditioning carbon scrubbers or other air filtration devices to 
address this. 
 
Land Use Approaches for Retail Cannabis Establishments 
 
The 2021 legislation allows municipalities to enact certain zoning regulations and ordinances for 
retail sales of a cannabis product to consumers. Except for the silent option, any changes will 
require public notification and a public hearing. Following the Town of Vernon zoning 
framework, the options include: 
 

1. The PZC could take no specific action (silent approach) related to retail cannabis. Here, 
retail cannabis would be regulated as similar retail establishments such as in the 
Commercial zoning district where section 4.9.4.11 indicates a Special Permit Use 
consistent with Section 17 (Special Regulations) is required. Section 17 includes review 
criteria such as compatibility with neighboring land uses and whether a use will create a 
nuisance.  In the alternative, the PZC could amend the ordinance, adding certain cannabis 
establishments to select districts. 

 
2. The PZC can amend the zoning ordinance to prohibit cannabis establishments.  

 
3. The PZC can permit, via the special permit process--with added considerations for 

separation from certain other uses (schools, for instance) or perhaps other conditions 
related to signage, hours of operation, site considerations, etc…One option here would be 
to address the retail Cannabis use similar to how the current ordinance considers the sale 
of alcoholic beverages which includes a proscribed separating distance from seller to 
seller (3,000 feet); server to server (2,000 feet); seller/server to a public institution (1,000 
feet or 2,000 feet from a high school). 
 
Using the alcoholic beverage separation concept, attached to the memo is a map, intended 
for conversation, showing estimated various distances from public schools (1,000 feet, 
3,000 feet, 5,000 feet). Separation from schools appears to be a common method of 
regulation and a rational approach to minimizing potential interactions with underage 
citizens. This concept map should be helpful in beginning (it is not intended as a specific 
proposal) to determine what areas would then be available for retail cannabis locations.  
 

4. The above is intended to include all types of licenses selling cannabis to the consuming 
public (hybrid, cultivator with sales, dispensary, etc…). 

 
 
 
 



 
 

4 
 

Land Use Approaches for Other Cannabis Establishments 
 
For the non-retail licensing establishments such as producer, food and beverage manufacturer, 
cultivator, micro-cultivator, etc…much of the above options also apply. 
 
 
Next Steps 
 
The PZC should strive for consensus direction in order for Staff and Legal Advisors to draft the 
appropriate ordinances. Any amendment to the zoning ordinance will require a public hearing (a 
temporary moratorium is also considered an amendment). 



WESTW
O OD

DR

OA
KV

IEW
PL

WILLOW
STREAM

DR

RIVERSIDE DR

REGAN ST

RAU ST 
EXT

MA
PL

E S
T

TUMBLE BROOK DR

QUAILX ING

CONN
ST

HARTFORD TPKE

BRITTANY 
LN

ELI
ZABETH LN

BAKER RD

ME
AD

OW
LA

RK
 R

D

FISK 
ST

RA
VE

NS
CR

OF
TR

D

EV
ER

GR
EE

N 
RD

¬«30

ANNST

BOLTON RD

LOEHR
RD

CL
AR

K R
D ZOEY DR

¬«30

DANNY TRL

KANTER DR

BRIDLE PATH LN

TA
LLW

OO
D D

R

SU
TT

ON
 DR

EX
IT 66

COLD
SPRING DR

DR

¬«74

IND
IAN

 TR
L

BA
ILE

Y
LN

Ogden Brook

OA
K

ST

LEGION DR

TYLERKNL

W
MA

IN
ST

§̈¦I 84
  

R H
EE

L
ST

RIDG

EWOOD DR

SUNNINGDALE
LN

RD

DAVIS AVE

CHERRY
LN

HARLOW
ST

TRACY DR

MIDDLE TER

POLO 
HGTS

BUTTERNUT LN

NE
WM

AR
KE

R 
RD

RIVER ST

1stST

STONE
ST

MI
DL

AN
D 

DR

RAINB O

W TRL

¬«31

LYNWOOD D R

TUNNEL R
D

AUTUMN-
WOOD

LN

WARREN AVE

PROSPECT ST

R
ICHAR D RD

QUARRY ST

GLENN
LN

FAR MB RO OK LN

BROOKS I DE LN

WHITE ST

PARTRIDGE 
HOLLOW LN

CHERRY
S T

ACORN 
RD

LAKE ST
ROLLINGVIEW DR

ROBIN RD

CROWN ST

HARTFORD TPKE

SCHOOL ST

BOXWOOD DR

¬«83

LO
VE

LA
ND

 HI
LL

 R
D

DRIGGS RD

HILLSIDE AVE

KINGSBURYAVE

CLAVET PL

INLAND
DR

RA
NG

EH
ILL

DR

NO
RT

HV
IEW

DR

ESTELLE DR

EXIT 66

SKINNER RD

HENRYPARK
W AY

TA
LC

OT
TV

ILL
E R

D

FO
ST

ER
 DR

DUNCASTER LN

¬«527

TALCOTTVILLE RD

TOBIASCT

MERLINE RD

BANCROFT
 PL

LY
NN

 D
R

CREST DR

WE
ST

 ST

BIRCH RD

GREEN RD

PHOENIX ST
STO

NE
WOO

D
TE

R

PARK PL

EXIT 67  

AV
E

Ra
ilro

ad
Br

oo
k

MINTER-
BURN CT

HIGH ST

HI
GH

RI
DG

E
DR

LUTA ST

VALERIE D R

CAROLYN
DR

MILE HILL RD

VERNON AV
E

RE
SE

RV
OI

R
RD

TRACY DR

BERKELEY DR

SURREY 
HILL

COURT
ST

VERNON SCHOOL

RD

OAKST

MIRIAM
DR

ELEANOR ST 
EXT

DART HILL RD

LAW
REN

CE ST

BROADHURST
RD

TO
W

ER
RD

DARYL
DR MT

VE
RN

ON
DR

CATHY
DR

JENNIFER 
LN

DOBSON RD

JAKE'S
WAY

SNIPSIC ST

ALLISONRD

INDUSTRIAL

PARK DR

¬«30

CRI C KE
T CIR

TIMBER LN

RHODE ISLAND 
DR

TANKEROOSEN RD

BECKER 
PL

OAKMOOR DR

SOUTH
TER

CENTER ST

PATRICIA DR

CEDAR
ST

LIL
Y L

N

HYDE AVE

WHITMAN 

LN

CH
RI

ST
OP

HE
R

DR

W MAIN ST

MO
RR

ISO
N

ST

KING ST

¬«74

FREDERIC RD

MERLINE RD

CHEL SEA RDG

LOVELAND

HILL RD

TUNNEL RD

UNION ST

KENWOOD DR

DE
EP

WO
OD

DR

EMERALD

¬«74

¬«52
7

CAMPBELL 
AVE EXT

PEARL D
R

OLD
TO

WN
RD

BRIAR-
WOODLN

BR
IM

WOOD DR

VINETTA DR

CENTER RD

EXIT 67  

REED ST

ST

JUNIPER
L N

EUDY
CT

HA
NY

 LN

PINE VIEW
DR

Hocka num
River

Hockanum River

BOLTON RD

FOREST VIEW DR

HUBLARD DR

JONATHAN DR

GA
RD

EN
DR

EXIT 67  

LINDEN
PL

LUTA CIR

NORTH 
TER

WELLES RD

GREEN CIRCLERD

PI NEWOOD DR

LAKEVIE
W DR

CL
AIR

E R
D

AMY DR

MAIN
 ST

DOBSON 

COMMONS

RAYMOND 
ST

SA
DD

LE
HI

TC
H

TOLLAND AVE

LORRAINE 
DR

PINE ST

SCHOOLBROOK

LN

RAMBLING RD

HATCH HILL RD

HO
WA

RD
DR

S FRONTAGE RD

MORRISON 
ST EXT

VASSAR ST

TALCOTT AVE

SCOTT DR

QUARRY DR

DOBSON RD

PETERSON RD

JOHN DR

UTAH 
ST

VISTA
VW

CINDY
TER

CUBLES DR

¬«83

HIL LCREST DR

PARK WEST DR

TARAKACK

LN

OLSON DR

WA
YN

E R
D

E MAIN ST

HIGHLAND AVE

MAPLE AVE

HUNTINGTON DR

GERBER

BLVD

NEILL RD

BRUCE 

CENTER RD

WATSON
RD

SOUTH ST

WOLCOTT LN

ERICCIR

EXIT 6 4

BR
AN

DY
HI

LL
R D

VERNWOOD DR

DR

BRADLEY 
DR

VILLAGE ST

WHE
EL

E R
RD

¬«542

E MAIN ST

WARDST

Tankerhoosen River

GARTH
LN

WINDSORVILLE RD

BERGER

ELIOT
DR

EC
HO

 RI
DG

E D
R

TIFFIN DR

¬«31

ST BERNARD'S TER

CORREIA WAY

LIBERTY ST

EAST ST

OVERBROOK DR

HAYES DR

TA
LC

OT
TV

ILL
E R

D

ER
TE

L
DR

WE
ST

ON
PL

DO
CK

ER
EL

 RD

WARREN AVE

IRE
NE

 D
R

JA
N 

DR

HI LLSIDEMANOR
AVE

BRIDLE-
WOOD LN

GRANT ST

DIANE DR

PINNACLE DR

¬«83

OREGON 
AVE

BANCROFT RD

BO
LTO

N BR
AN

CH
RD

WINDING BROOK TRL

NYE ST

TAYLOR ST

LANTERN LN

BE
LL

EV
UE

BLUE RIDGE DR

FERNWOOD
RD

STUART 
DR

S GROVE ST

EXIT 66

RAU ST

GA
RD

NE
R R

D

IRENE DR

TEMPLE
ST

B RIGHTO
N LN

WE
ST

 ST

BRENT DR

VERNON C E
NT

ER

HEIGHTS

PILLSBURYHL

BOULDER CREST LN

FAITHDR

WILSHIRE RD

RO SEWOOD DR

KEYNOTE DR

WAPPING-

WOOD RD

GRADY RD

WILDWOOD RD

TU
NN

EL
VIE

W
TE

R

FOX HILL DR

§̈¦I 84  

SHADY BROOKLN

ECHO DR

¬«533

THOMPSON 
ST

MT VER NON DR

SYCAMORE
RD

HA
MI

LT
ON

DR

BEVERLY RD

VERMONT 
AVE

NAEK RD

KEVIN DR

HATCH HILL RD

MA
RY

 LN

DOW 
ST

COTTAGE
ST

¬«74

ROCKLEDG E DR

FO
X

HU
NT

G LEN STONE DR

ELM HILL RD

SUN
SET
AVE

¬«53
3

RUSSELL DR

FOREST DR

GRANDVIEW
TER

HARTFORD TPKE

SUNSETTER

DO
NN

EL
L R

D

KELLY RD

OR
CH

AR
D S

T

WEST ST

OGDEN VIEW DR

MAIDENLN

HE
AT

HE

R

LN

AHERNLN

KRISTYN
DR

GRAND AVE

TEXAS 
ST

CEMETERY RD

TERRACE DR

MILLER RD

WILSON LN

FRANKL IN
PARK

W

BEECHWOOD RD

S DEERFIELD 
DR

CAMPBELL AVE

¬«541

WA
RD

 ST

CE
NT

RA
L 

ST

FERN ST

¬«83

¬«74 SPRUCE ST

HARRIET ST

RE
SE

RV
OIR RD

REGAN RD

WI
LD

WO
OD

 
RD

 S

EXIT

65

OLD DOBSON
RD

WE
ST

 ST

UPPERBUTCHER RD

HANSEN DR

WI
LD

WO
OD

RD

SUSAN RD

EDITH RD

MCL EAN ST

JEFF RD

SU
MM

IT
RD

PR
OG

RE
SS

SUNRISE DR

GERALD DR

PHEASANT
RUN

Hockanum
Riv er

WINDSOR AVERD

RESERVIOR RD

GEORGE DR

2ndST

EASTV IEW
DR

VIN
E D

R

OVIA
TE

RD

CRESTR IDGE DR

S TEE
PL

E

CHASE
DR

LAKE ST

MARJORIE LN

DAVIS 
AVE EXT

GR
IER

RD

PARK ST

DART
RD

LA
WL

ER
 R

D

BARBARA RD

AUSTIN
DR

FRANKLI N

PARKE

¬« 533

HE
ML

OC
K D

R

EL
EA

NO
R

ST

¬«30

HARTL DR

HA
RT

FO
RD

 TP
KE

PLE ASANT VIEW DR

BOLTON RD

WORCESTER
DR

WE
LLWOOD CIR

CO
UN

TR
Y L

N

LYDALL ST

VALLEY FALLS RD

TR
UM

BU
LL

ST

MONTAUK DR

EM
ILY

 D
R

HALE ST EXT

CHAMBERLAIN

ST

OLD STONE RD

ARIZONA 
AVE

OLIVE LN

¬«83

¬«30

EVA 
CIR

GA
YN

OR PL

GO

TTIER DR

UNION
ST

CH
ES

TN
UT

ST

HOCKANUM BLVD

MEADOWVIEW
LN

KENNETH DR

REED
ST

CR
OS

S D
R

ALLAN DR

VA
LL

EY
VIE

W
LN

VERNON
AVE

KNOLLWOOD DR

CEMETERY
AVE 

DAILEY CIR

BROOKLYN ST

CHURCH ST

EXIT 64  

WALKER TER

AV
E

BAMFORTH RD

Tan
ker

hoosen River

BOLTON RD

F ISH AND GAME RD

VISTA VIEW
EXT

SPRING ST

DE
E R

FIE
LD

D R

¬«31

STANLEY

HAYLIN
DR

BETTE CIR

GALLOP 
WAY

AL
PE

RT
 D

R

BREAD A ND
MI

LK
RD

LEONA DR

EXIT 65

PLEASANT
ST

ANCHORAGE RD

HAM
MOND
ST

ELM ST

REGINA 
DR

RISLEY
RD

JA
NE

T L
N

P EN
FIE

LD
AV

E

SOUTH ST

LEWIS ST

HALE ST

WHITNEY T

FERGUSON
III RD

THOMAS ST

STRONG
AVE

¬«83

MICHAEL DR

JOHN 
ST

SUN VALLEY
DR

CAROL
DR

TROUT STREAM DR

MARK

CIR

PITKIN RD

¬«527

WINDERMERE AVE

EXIT
66

EMMA LN

THOMPSON CT

§̈¦I 84  

¬«54
1

HE
ID

I D
R

ELLINGTON

AVE

FOXCROFT RD

OXBOW
DR

WILSHIRE RD

ROBERT

¬«74

N
PA

RK
ST

EXIT 64 /65

THRALL RD

MILLS TRE
AM

DR

HILLTOP
AVE

WERNER DR

SK
IN

NE
R 

RD

DISCOVERY RD

QU
AIL

HOLLOW
CL

OS
E

BURKE RD

WO
OD

LA
ND

ST

BOX MOUNTAIN DR

WASHINGTON ST

RISLEY RD

IRONWOOD DR

JANOSKI 
DR

GROVE

ST

HICKORY

HILL

LE
GI

ON
 D

R

MAIDEN
LN

MOUN
TA

IN 
ST

MAS
SA

CH
US

ET
TS

AV
E

MA
XW

ELL DR

PADDOCK 
TRL SADDLE

GATE LN

BR
OO

KV
IEW

DR

EXIT 67  

SENECA DR

EARL ST

FRANKLIN ST

S UNNY
VIE

W DR

SADDLE
HITCH

LADYBUG
LN

WEBSTERST

JEN DR

Middle Bolton Lake

Shenipsit Lake

Risley Reservior

Lower Bolton Lake

Walker's Reservior W

Upper Bolton Lake

Paper Mill Pond

Talcottville Pond

Dobsonville Pond

Tankerhoosen Lake

Walker's Reservior E

Ecker's Pond

Valley Falls Pond

"
This map is for information only

and its utilization and verification 
shall be the sole responsibility 

of  the user. No warranty, expressed 
or implied, is made by the Town 
of  Vernon as to the accuracy or

completeness of  this map nor shall
the fact of  distribution constitute 

any such warranty.

This map was created by the 
Town of  Vernon GIS Dept

Date: 7/12/2021

School Buffer
Town of  Vernon

0 3,0001,500
Feet

Legend
Schools
1000
3000
5000
Buildings
Property Lines

0 0.50.25
Miles

Legend
Zoning
Rockville Area

NR-10 (Neighborhood NR-10)
RW (Restricted Watershed)
RC (Residential Commercial)
DBR (Downtown Business & Residential)
PND (Planned Neighborhood Development)
HD-RC (Historic District Residential Commercial)

Business
SED (Special Economic Development)
PC (Planned Commercial)
C (Commercial)
HD-I (Historic District Industrial)
I (Industrial )

Residential
R-10 (Single Family Residential)
R-15 (Single Family Residential)
R-22 (Single Family Residential)
R-27 (Single Family Residential)
R-40 (Single Family Residential)
PRD (Planned Residential Development)
MHP (Mobile Home Parks)

Other
PDZ-EXT 67 (I-84 Exit 67 Area)
CMFDZ (Comprehensive Multi-Family Dwelling Zone)
Open Space
PDZ (Planned Development Zone Gerber Farm)
SFZ-GZ (Special Floating Zone - Garden Zone)


	PZC  Agenda for 8-19-21
	Draft Minutes
	PZC  Draft Minutes 7-15-21
	Other Business
	PZC 8-19-21 memo and map
	Cannabis Transmittal of draft to PZC 8-19-21
	school_Buffer map7-12-21


